

**UNIVERSITY OF WISCONSIN-
WHITEWATER**

INTER-FRATERNITY COUNCIL

CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS

Last Revised
April 2005

Inter-Fraternity Council
University of Wisconsin-Whitewater
Constitution

Last Revised and Approved
April 19, 2005

ARTICLE I
(PREAMBLE)

Section 1.

We the Inter-Fraternity Council (IFC) of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater, do highly resolve that we, as a representative body of the Greek social fraternities on our campus, will promote general welfare, good character, sound learning, and moral development of all fraternities which we represent. We shall attain the highest standards in our academics and social activities. The representatives in this body shall be committed to working toward goals common to all fraternities and in the interest of improving the Greek system.

ARTICLE II
(MEMBERSHIP)

Section 1.

Local, state, and national general (social) fraternities recognized by the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater, must be a member of the Council.

Section 2.

Each Fraternity must have at least two (2) representatives and one designated alternate. One representative must be an Executive Board member of that Fraternity but not be responsible for rush or philanthropy within their Fraternity. All three individuals will be identified at the first meeting of the semester.

Section 3.

If the delegates of a Fraternity have been elected to the Executive Board, his Fraternity is responsible for selecting new delegates to the Council to satisfy its membership requirements according to Article II, Section 2.

Section 4.

No Fraternity is allowed to have more than two members on the IFC Executive Board.

ARTICLE III
(VOTING)

Section 1.

Each Fraternity has two (2) votes.

Section 2.

Quorum shall consist of 50% + 1 member (51%) of the delegates of their alternates present.

Section 2.

All votes to elect officers will be done by a secret ballot system. The Secretary will distribute and collect all ballots. The President and Secretary will count the votes, (the Vice President will fill in for either if the office being voted on is President or Secretary, or if the officers are not present for the election), and the meeting will reconvene after the results are known.

Section 3.

In event of a tie, the acting IFC President shall cast the deciding vote. If there is a conflict of interest, the acting IFC Vice President will cast the deciding vote. If there is still a conflict of interest, the Secretary will cast the deciding vote. If there is still a conflict of interest, the IFC Treasurer will cast the deciding the final vote.

Section 4.

A quorum shall be necessary to pass on motions and shall be defined as 2/3 (66%) of the total eligible voting representatives.

Section 5.

Chapter Representatives shall have full voting privileges concerning the passing of any motions, policies, and/or bylaws during all full Council meetings.

ARTICLE IV
(OBJECTIVES)

Section 1.

The objective of the IFC is to serve as the governing Council for UW-Whitewater fraternities. IFC will develop and maintain Fraternity life and Inter-Fraternity relations at the highest level attainable and in doing so:

- A. Consider the goals and ideas of member Chapters as continually applicable to campus and personal life.
- B. Act in accordance with all rules established by the IFC and UW-Whitewater.

- C. To promote and encourage the growth of all member fraternities and foster a positive relationship between Greeks, campus organizations and the local communities.

ARTICLE V (OFFICERS)

Section 1.

The officers of the IFC shall consist of a: President, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer, Rush Chairman, Public Relations Chairman, Philanthropy chairman, Activities Chairman, and an Education Chairman.

Section 2.

The President is required to have been on the Executive Board of the IFC for at least one year and have a GPA of 2.5.

Section 3.

The individuals elected to any Executive Board position must have at least one semester of previous experience as an active member of a Fraternity recognized by the IFC and hold a 2.20 cumulative grade point average. If any Executive Board member does not maintain the 2.20 cumulative grade point average, the member will be removed from office.

Section 4.

All Executive Board positions are elected at the earliest scheduled full Council meeting in April. The new Executive Board then takes over at the next IFC meeting with the past Executive Board members acting in an advisory role.

Section 5.

All Executive Board positions are elected by a simple majority vote of the Council.

Section 6.

Vacancies shall be filled by a special election for that office. An announcement of the vacancy will be made at the earliest Council meeting, and the election shall take place at the following meeting. The elected person shall serve the remaining unexpired term except for the position of President, which shall be filled in by the Vice President.

Section 7.

No member of IFC owing money to IFC can hold an office.

Section 8.

An Executive Board member can be removed from IFC by a unanimous vote of no confidence by the Executive Board.

**ARTICLE VI
(BY-LAWS)**

Section 1.

Amendments to the By-Laws must be submitted in writing by a Chapter Delegate to the IFC President.

Section 2.

All amendments to the Constitution and By-Laws submitted to IFC shall need a vote of 2/3 (66%) of the total membership of the IFC present to be ratified.

**ARTICLE VII
(REGULATIONS)**

Section 1.

Amendments must be submitted in writing by a chapter delegate to the IFC Executive Board

Section 2.

All amendments to the constitution and by –laws submitted to the IFC shall need a vote of 2/3 (66%) of the total membership of the IFC present or not to achieve ratification.

ARTICLE VIII

Section 1.

The Constitution and By-Laws of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater IFC bind member fraternities until such times as they are amended or rescinded.

Section 2.

All member fraternities will keep an active member list, and will provide it within the first two weeks of the beginning of the semester to IFC and UW-W administration.

Section 3.

Each member Fraternity must keep a hazing/risk management statement, a chapter constitution, and by-laws on file with the IFC.

Section 4.

If any Fraternity is found guilty of violating any federal, state, university, or municipal code, or violates any part of the UWW IFC Constitution or By-laws, is subject to review and possibly penalties by the Greek Judicial Board.

Inter-Fraternity Council
University of Wisconsin-Whitewater

BY-LAWS

Last Revised & Approved
April 19, 2005

ARTICLE I
(MEETINGS)

Section 1.

(Time and Place) The first meeting of the IFC must be held by the second week after classes begin for the semester. The place will be announced no less than 2 days in advance.

Section 2.

The IFC Executive Board must meet at least once a week. The IFC full Council must meet at least once every two weeks. All IFC committees will meet at the discretion of the committee's chairman.

Section 3.

(Special Meetings) The President shall have the power to call special meetings of the IFC at his discretion, or whenever a request is presented to him signed by $\frac{1}{4}$ (25%) of the voting representatives. All fraternities will be given 24-hour notice of the meeting.

Section 4.

(Rules of Order) The current edition of Robert's Rule of Order shall govern the conduct of meetings.

Section 5.

(Order of Business) The order of Business of the IFC shall be as follows:

- A. Meeting call to order
- B. Roll call
- C. Reading and approval of the minutes
- D. Officer Reports
- E. Committee reports
- F. Unfinished business
- G. New business
- H. Announcements
- I. Adjournment

ARTICLE II
(OFFICER DUTIES)

Section 1.

PRESIDENT:

- A. Presides at all IFC meetings
- B. Is empowered to administer and communicate the decisions of the IFC.
- C. Casts the deciding vote in event of a tie vote.
- D. Provides Secretary with a rough copy of the agenda in advance of scheduled meetings.
- E. Maintain President logbook and records, along with supervising and updating and maintenance of other officer's notebooks and records.
- F. Chairman of the Judiciary Committee.
- G. Serves as representative to the University
- H. Along with the Secretary *, count the votes cast in any election.

* If in any case of a vote, where the President and Secretary are affiliated with the same chapter, the President will be replaced with the next available officer of a different chapter affiliation.

Section 2.

VICE PRESIDENT

- A. Assumes the duties of the President in his absence. If a vacancy occurs in the Presidency, the Vice President shall become President and elections for a new Vice President shall be held at the earliest possible meeting.
- B. Coordinates all IFC (Standing and AD-hoc) committees. (Insures that committees are meeting regularly and accomplishing their objectives.
- C. Attends any functions the President is unable to attend.
- D. Attends all Panhellenic Council meetings and reports back to the IFC.
- E. Responsible for updating and maintaining IFC university website.
- F. Provides written updates to the online Greek Calendar.

Section 3.

SECRETARY

- A. Notify each representative, at least 48 hours in advance of all regular and special IFC meetings by phone and email.
- B. Keep records of the authorized representatives of each Fraternity and their attendance at all meetings.
- C. Read minutes and distribute to all IFC members' mailboxes in the Campus Activities and Programs office, the IFC advisor, the Panhellenic Council, the Assistant Chancellor of Student Affairs, and all Chapter Advisors.
- D. Record all revisions to the Constitution and By-laws and provide copies to the Executive Board and all IFC members upon request.
- E. Act as recording and corresponding secretary.

- F. Keep a file of all minutes, which shall be placed in the IFC permanent file in the Leadership Center.
- G. Along with the President*, count the casted votes in any election.

* If in any case of a vote, where the President and Secretary are affiliated with the same chapter, the President will be replaced with the next available officer of a different chapter.

Section 4.

TREASURER

- A. Collects and assesses all money in accordance with the Constitution and By-laws or special actions of the IFC. (See Article II of the IFC Constitution and Article V of the IFC By-laws).
- B. Pay all bills submitted to and approved by the IFC.
- C. Keep accurate records of all money received and paid out since the last regular meeting.
- D. Audit books each semester, and make a full report to the IFC.
- E. Develop a budget for approval of the Council, to be completed by the second regular meeting of the IFC.

Section 5.

RUSH CHAIRMAN

- A. Chair of the Rush committee.
- B. Distribute informational literature throughout the University about Fraternity Rush.
- C. Oversee Chapter rush activities for compliance of all IFC and National Inter-Fraternity Council (NIC) rush rules, regulations, and policies.
- D. Create Greek awareness with Panhellenic Council.

Section 6.

PUBLIC RELATIONS CHAIRMAN

- A. Chair the Public Relations Committee.
- B. Must have at least one (1) event scheduled and approved by the Council.
- C. Utilize Leadership Development Marketing Services to promote all IFC and chapter activities.

Section 7.

PHILANTHROPY CHAIRMAN

- A. Chair the Philanthropy Committee.
- B. Must have at least one (1) event scheduled and approved by the Council.
- C. Complete Community Service forms in Leadership Development.

Section 8.

SOCIAL/RISK MANAGEMENT CHAIRMAN

- A. Chair the Activities Committee.
- B. Must have at least one (1) event scheduled and approved by the Council.

- C. Will serve as the Greek Week co-chair.

Section 9.

EDUCATION CHAIRMAN

- A. Chair the Education Committee.
- B. Must have at least one (1) event scheduled and approved by the Council.

Section 10.

Every Officer and Chairman must maintain an Officer's Binder of all work and events performed, to help with the transition for the newly elected Executive Board.

Section 11.

All Chairmen of the committees shall submit a written progress report to the Vice President of the IFC, by the eighth week of the semester.

ARTICLE III
(STANDING COMMITTEES)

Section 1.

STANDING COMMITTEES

- A. Rush Committee
- B. Public Relations Committee
- C. Philanthropy Committee
- D. Activities Committee
- E. Education Committee

Section 2.

A chapter may not have more than one member on each Standing Committee.

Section 3.

RUSH COMMITTEE

- A. The Rush Committee will be headed by the Rush Chairman of the IFC, and will be made up of the Rush Chairman from each member Fraternity.
- B. The Rush Committee shall be responsible for all IFC matters relating to rush. The Committee shall be responsible for reviewing and developing rush rules, submitting them for discussion and approval to the IFC, and distributing copies of the rules as approved by IFC to all member Fraternity Presidents. Following each membership selection period (Bid Day), the Rush Chairman shall present a full report including recommendations to the Council.

Section 4.

PUBLIC RELATIONS COMMITTEE

- A. The Public Relations Committee will be headed by the Public Relations Chairman of the IFC, and will be made up of one representative from each member Fraternity.
- B. The Public Relations Committee shall be responsible for all forms of publicity dealing with the IFC. The Committee will work closely with the Executive Board and all committees to make certain that the campus, community, and news media is kept informed of favorable activities of the IFC and member Fraternities.

Section 5.

PHILANTHROPY COMMITTEE

- A. The Philanthropy Committee will be headed by the Philanthropy Chairman of the IFC and will be made up of all the officers in charge of philanthropy from each member Fraternity.
- B. The Philanthropy Committee will organize all philanthropy events in both the University and Whitewater communities. Participation of all member Fraternities is required in all philanthropic events.

Section 6.

ACTIVITIES COMMITTEE

- A. The Activities Committee will be headed up by the Activities Chairman of the IFC, and will be made up of one representative from each member Fraternity.
- B. The Activities Committee will organize and coordinate all activities and events dealing with the IFC each semester.

Section 7.

EDUCATION COMMITTEE

- A. The Education Committee will be headed by the Education Chairman of the IFC, and will be made up of one representative from each member Fraternity.
- B. The Education Committee will be in charge of organization and coordinating education speakers/seminars for the benefit of both the Greek community and the University. Speakers and seminars should cover topics such as academics, sexual assault, alcohol awareness, hazing, racism, etc.

Section 8.

JUDICIAL COMMITTEE

- A. The President of each Fraternity shall make up the Judicial Committee with the President of the Fraternity in violation not having a vote, and the officers of the IFC. The President of the IFC shall chair the Committee, run the meetings, and has the deciding vote in case of a tie. However, in the case of a conflict of interest (i.e. the IFC President is a member of the Fraternity being charged), the deciding vote will be cast by the IFC Vice President. If there is still a conflict of interest, then the Secretary will cast

the deciding vote. If there is still a conflict of interest, the Treasurer will then in turn cast the final vote.

1. The purpose of the IFC Judiciary Committee is to enforce any rules or infractions of the rules (i.e. rush rule infractions).
- B. Hearing Procedure:
1. The Fraternity/IFC Executive(s) levying the charges presents their case and states the nature of the violation.
 2. The Fraternity charged with the violation states their side of the issue.
 3. The Fraternity/IFC Executive(s) levying the charges has a chance for rebuttal.
 4. The Fraternity charged with the violation then has a final chance for rebuttal.
- C. The outcome of the hearing will be decided at the time of the hearing and the Fraternity charged, will be notified by a written letter within 48 hours of the decision. A copy of the outcome may be sent to the National Headquarters of the Fraternity in question, or it's Board of Directors.
- D. If a decision of the Judiciary Committee is not acceptable to the parties involved, the case may then be appealed within 24 hours to the IFC Council body for a decision on the appeal.

ARTICLE IV (FRATERNITY MEMBERSHIP)

Section 1.

The question of who shall be considered a member of each Fraternity shall be left up to each Fraternity, as stated in their Constitution. No member may have less than a 2.0 GPA.

ARTICLE V (DUES)

Section 1.

Fraternity membership dues will be \$200.00 each semester per chapter. The dues must be turned in to the IFC Treasurer before IFC Full Council meeting following the IFC Full Council meeting when the budget was passed.

Section 2.

Fraternities not paying the dues will be penalized as described:

- A. Any dues paid more than one week late shall be placed on social probation (refer to rush infractions) and/or have University privileges restricted until dues are paid in full.
- B. A late fee of 10%, of the original amount due, per week late shall be assessed. It may be wave by a 2/3 (66%) vote by the Executive Board.

Section 3.

The IFC has the power to levy special assessments to the member Fraternities to pay for programs approved and sponsored by the IFC.

ARTICLE VI
(MEETING ATTENDANCE)

Section 1.

All IFC Executive Board members shall be present.

Section 2.

Two (2) delegates from each chapter shall be present. (Refer to the IFC Constitution Article II, section 2).

Section 3.

ABSENTEEISM:

- A. Chapters with inadequate delegate attendance (2 representatives) at Full Council meetings shall lose voting privileges for that said meeting.
- B. A Fraternity owing a fine will not have the right to vote until the fine is paid in full, but attendance is mandatory.
- C. Officers must have a written excuse, with date and reason for their absence from an IFC meeting or Executive Board meeting, to the President at least 24 hours prior to the meeting. A phone call is not acceptable. An officer is allowed two unexcused absences; after used he shall be removed from office.
- D. Delegates must have written excuse with date and reason for their absence from an IFC at least 24 hours prior to the meeting.

ARTICLE VII
(RUSH)

Section 1.

Formal Rush:

RUSH GUIDELINES:

- A. It is prohibited to have any non-rush related social events at a Fraternity house or location where the majority of attendees are members of the chapter on the night of any of their rush dates.
- B. During Formal Rush it is a violation to have any non-affiliated UW-Whitewater male student in the chapter house.
- C. During Formal Rush it is a violation to have strippers as a rush event.
- D. If a Fraternity does not have an official chapter house one can be determined by a vote of the full IFC Council.
- E. During Formal Rush, there is to be no alcohol present when any UW-Whitewater non-affiliated male is at a Fraternity chapter house or Rush location.

- F. Fraternities may only hold Rush events on their scheduled dates. These Rush events must not be before 7:00pm and must conclude by 10:00pm (Central Standard Time).
- G. Each Fraternity is allowed to hold one Rush event with extended hours. In order to do so the Fraternity must complete the form found in XXX one week prior to Rush. The Fraternity will then submit the form to the IFC Rush Chairman who will then present it to the Executive Board. The Executive Board shall vote on the extension with a 2/3 (66%) majority required to pass.
- H. The IFC Rush Chairman will attend at least one rush event of every Fraternity. In the case of his own Fraternity's rush event, it is their choice of the Executive Board of IFC whether to send the IFC Rush Chairman or IFC President if not a member of the chapter.
- I. Bids cannot be handed out before midnight Thursday.
 - 1. A bid will be defined as: Any invitation, formal or informal, be it written, verbal or otherwise, extended to an individual seeking initiation/membership to a UW-Whitewater Social Greek Fraternity asking them to return after Rush for consideration for initiation or membership.
- J. Each Fraternity must turn in a list of the men who have accepted bids to the IFC Rush Chairman at the very next full Council meeting of the IFC.
- K. All other Rush guidelines will be developed each semester and adopted by the IFC and will be part of the By-Laws.

ARTICLE VIII
(ALCOHOL POLICY)

Section 1.

The Alcohol Policy for all member Fraternities will be described as the Greek System Alcohol Guidelines. (See Addendum I)

ARTICLE IX
(REQUIREMENTS FOR CHAPTER MEMBERSHIP ON COUNCIL)

Section 1.

A MEMBER CHAPTER SHALL:

- A. Pay all dues and fees owed to the IFC.
- B. Abide by the University, IFC, and NIC, policies, constitutions, and by-laws.
- C. Cooperate in any proceedings of the Judicial Committee with which it may be involved and abide by all Judicial Committee rulings arresting it.
- D. Maintain an updated list of officers, advisers, and Corporations/Alumni Board Presidents with the Leadership Center and the IFC.
- E. Abide by all applicable University regulations and policies.
- F. Be represented at all IFC meetings with the proper number of representatives (2).

ARTICLE X
(RULES FOR RUSH INFRACTIONS)

Section 1.

THE PROCEDURE FOR HANDLING INFRACTIONS OF RUSH RULES WILL BE AS FOLLOWS:

- A. When a Fraternity believes there has been an infraction, a written report signed by the accusing Fraternity with a copy provided for the accused must be submitted to the IFC Rush Chairman within 48 hours after the infraction is known within the semester of the violation.
- B. A conference of representatives of the groups involved will be called immediately to reach an amicable, if possible. The Presidents and the Rush Chairpersons will meet with the Greek Advisor, the IFC Council President and the Rush Chairman.
- C. If it is determined that an infraction has occurred, or the question remains in doubt, the case will be referred immediately to the Judiciary Committee for a decision.
- D. A copy of the proceedings will be sent to the Fraternity Advisor and Chapter President of the Fraternity for whom the violation was called and the complainant.
- E. If the decision of the Judiciary Committee is not acceptable to the groups involved, the case may be appealed within 48 hours to the IFC Full Council for a decision.

ARTICLE XI
(PENALTIES FOR RUSH VIOLATIONS)

Section 1.

EXAMPLES AND PENALTIES FOR RUSH VIOLATIONS:

- A. Possible examples of a rush violation which the IFC may consider, but are not limited to:
 - 1. Serving alcohol during a rush event.
 - 2. Sending out Bids before the assigned time.
 - 3. Holding a party, with UWW non-affiliated males, during another chapters designated rush hours.
- B. Penalties for infractions should be assessed to fit the nature and degree of the offense. Possible sanctions the IFC may impose, but are not limited to:
 - 1. The loss of a rush night.
 - 2. Constructive penalties of a positive nature of some extra activity designed for campus betterment, or some other service to the IFC or University.
 - 3. Suspension of social activities, such as chapter parties, and participation in campus events.
 - 4. When doing assigned community or University service hours, they cannot wear letters.

5. In special cases, a punishment will be made at the discretion of the Judiciary Board.

Section 2.

The duration of the rush penalty imposed by the IFC shall not extend beyond the next semester after it was imposed.

Section 3.

The IFC shall report in writing, within one week of the date it was imposed, any rush penalty to the Greek Advisor, Chapter Advisor, and Chapter President of the Fraternity against which it is imposed.

ARTICLE XII
(NEW CHAPTER STATUS)

Section 1.

Fraternities seeking membership on the IFC shall first petition the Council for consideration for colonization/expansion. The Council shall need a 2/3 majority vote (66%) to accept the petition. If granted to Council's permission to organize they will be eligible to apply for University recognition. Having secured this recognition, they are eligible for probationary membership in the IFC.

ARTICLE XIII
(IFC ADVISOR)

Section 1.

In accordance with the policies of the University of Wisconsin-Whitewater, a faculty/staff member shall act as Advisor to the IFC as assigned by Leadership Development.

Section 2.

The IFC Advisor will not be able to draw from the IFC funds, unless they have a signed statement from the IFC President and Treasurer.

Section 3.

BILLING THE IFC

- A. The IFC Advisor cannot give a bill to the IFC, unless there is a detailed list of charges.
 1. The IFC Advisor cannot bill the IFC without prior approval from the IFC through written documentation.
 2. The IFC Advisor cannot bill individual members of the IFC without prior approval from the IFC through written documentation.

ARTICE XIV
(EXCHANGE POLICIES)

Section 1.

Member Fraternities of the UW-Whitewater's Inter-Fraternity Council may have exchanges with any University recognized organizations as governed by the Chapter's risk management policy.

Section 2.

Member Fraternities of the UW-Whitewater's Inter-Fraternity Council will follow the rules in Addendum I (Greek System Alcohol Policy).

ARTICLE XV
(IFC ATHLETICS)

Section 1.

Members must have full membership and non-probationary status with the IFC (probationary members may participate with prior approval from the IFC).

Section 2.

Individuals participating in any IFC sponsored athletic event must have active member status with their Fraternity. If any individual, whom was an associate member the same semester, will not be allowed to participate in any IFC sponsored athletic event.

Section 3.

Chapters participating in the IFC Softball Tournament must abide by all IFC Softball Rules (see Addendum II- voted in during Fall 1998).

ADDENDUM I
GREEK SYSTEM ALCOHOL POLICY

1. All social functions will have set beginning and ending times, (11:45 new members/associate members leave / 12:45 active members leave). There will be no returns by any Sorority member to the Fraternity house after the ending time. There will be no overnight guests.
2. Each chapter involved in the event will provide at least two (2) responsible persons and at least two (2) designated drivers to attend the entire function, none of whom may consume alcohol.
3. Alcohol cannot be served in a self-service manner.
4. Each chapter shall be responsible to ensure that all members leave the event at the scheduled ending time. Sorority members may only leave with other Sorority members.
5. Alternative non-alcoholic beverages must be made available at events where alcohol is served. Water or beverages consisting of primarily water (i.e. Kool Aid) may not be considered the only alternative beverage.
6. Chapters shall know and abide by the State and local laws regarding the distribution/consumption of alcoholic beverages.
7. Separate bathrooms for men and women shall be provided. Sorority members must travel in pairs, one of which must be active.
8. No one is allowed outside or upstairs during the event.
9. There will be no sexually explicit themes for exchanges.
10. No one will be pressed or required to participate in any form of drinking game.
11. IFC and Panhellenic Council are not responsible if these guidelines are broken.
12. Chapters who violate these guidelines may be subject to penalties and actions by the local law enforcement, the Student Organization Conduct and Review Board and the University.
13. Cooperation with the law enforcement is expected.

ADDENDUM II
OFFICAL IFC SOFTBALL TOURNAMENT RULES

1. Players must be an active member of the Fraternity as well as a full time student of UWW. Unless the member in question is a graduating senior who was a full time student the previous semester.
2. No new members are allowed to participate the semester they associate.
 - a. If the chapter has at least 10 members, those are the members that must play.
 - b. Only if the chapter does not have at least 10 members, are the associates allowed to play.
3. If caught violating rules 1-2; the chapter will forfeit the tournament and be disqualified from competition. The chapter will also receive the lowest possible seed in the following semester's tournament. This will occur even if this is the champion team of the tournament.
4. IFC will supply 4 bats. No shelled, double or triple walled bats will be allowed.
5. IFC will supply the game balls and only IFC game balls can be used during the tournament.
6. There will be a fifty-minute time limit, which will begin when the first pitch is thrown except during the championship game.
7. Each team has 5 minutes from scheduled game time to supply nine players to play with. Any less than nine players and the team forfeits the game.
8. Every chapter must supply one umpire for every game they are not participating in for the entire tournament. For those chapters that do not supply an umpire, that team will automatically forfeit one run per inning and will be fined \$5.
9. Logistics:
 - a. Three balls; two strikes-swinging or called. Any pitch that hits the black mat is a strike.
 - b. 6-12 foot arc level at the umpire's discretion. Umpires must be consistent for both teams.
 - c. Pitcher has the ball on the rubber = time out.
 - d. You may use an extra batter or a DH, you do not have to use either.
 - e. Ten player maximum on the field. Nine player minimum.
10. Only plastic cleats may be worn.
11. Tournament is double elimination, with the brackets to be decided by the IFC Activities Chairman.

***THESE RULES WILL BE ENFORCED UNTIL THE LAST DAY OF SCHOOL FOR THAT SEMESTER.**